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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Prof. CHAN Chok Ki

Dr. MA Chi Kit

Mr. HO Ka Ho

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dr. CHAN Cheung Fat

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. TO Ka Ho

Prof. SIU Wan Chi

Prof. CHING Pak Chung, BBS

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Units 202-203, 2nd Floor

Laford Centre

838 Lai Chi Kok Road

Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITES
http://www. TeleEye.com
http://www. TeleEye.com.hk
http://www. TeleEye.hk
http://www. TeleEye.co.uk
http://www. TeleEye.com.cn
http://www. TeleEye.net.cn
http://www. TeleEye.cn
http://www. TeleEye.com.sg
http://www.TeleEye.sg
http://www. TeleEye.in
http://www. TeleEye.com.bd
http://www. TeleEye.net.bd
http://www. TeleEye.com.lk
http://www. TeleEye.lk
http://www. TeleEyeThailand.com
http://www.TeleEye.es
http://www. TeleEye.net
http://www. TeleEye.info
http://www. TeleEye.asia
http://'www.CAMERIO.com
http://www.smac-m.com
http://'www. TFHEIR net
http://www. THETHIR .com
http://www. T IEMR cn
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QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHOI Wai Yip
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Mr. HO Ka Ho
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Prof. SIU Wan Chi

Prof. CHING Pak Chung, BBS
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PRINCIPAL BANKER
Hang Seng Bank Limited
83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
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Tricor Tengis Limited
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Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31st Floor
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT )% #t45

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the business performance overall was
stable throughout the year, except for the turbulent middle-east region.
Competition was strong and demand was weak in most regions where
economic growth was stagnated. As a result, our revenue and gross profit

margin dropped slightly.

The trend of switching to High Definition (“HD”) video surveillance
systems from analogue systems is continuing but not as fast as expected.
During the year, the price of analogue systems has dropped significantly
under strong competition. Thus making the price differential bigger in
comparison to HD systems. Therefore cost conscious customers are less
willing to choose HD systems over analogue systems. During the year,
we recorded a double-digit growth in sales of HD systems while the sales

of analogue systems dropped slightly.

We will continue to carry out our business strategy and expand our
sales team. This year, we will launch new products in both the HD and
analogue areas, as well as new software applications. We will further
expand our sales team and establish new sales channels to bring in
more revenue. Hong Kong’s low unemployment rate, inflation and the
intense pressure on the office rental market all contribute significantly to
business expenses. In order to overcome these obstacles our management
team will review operation processes to improve efficiency and reduce
costs. With the opportunities that lie ahead and our dedication, we will

continue to build our business both responsibly and sustainably.
In this regard, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere

gratitude and thanks to sharcholders, business partners and the TeleEye

team for their continual support.

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 September 2014
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR ik i e 23 B

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$37,513,000, representing a decrease of about 4% as
compared with the turnover of about HK$39,159,000 of the preceding
year. Loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2014 amounted to approximately HK$6,548,000, representing an
increase of approximately 24% when compared with last year. Basic loss
per share for the year ended 30 June 2014 was 48 HK cents (2013: 42
HK cents).

As a result of the Group’s control on overhead costs, overall operating
costs during the year decreased to HK$21,585,000 as compared to
HK$22,215,000 in the previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business of HD video surveillance systems continued on a healthy
growth trend in the year under review. In facing fierce price competition
and weaker demand, the business of Standard Resolution (“SD”) systems
reported a double-digit drop in revenue. As a result, the overall revenue
and gross profit margin have both decreased slightly. The average price
differential between a HD and SD system remained high due to a rapid
decline in the price of a SD system. Despite this, during the latter part
of the year under review, the price of SD systems has stabilised and a

further drop is unlikely.

The Group has expanded its sales team, strengthened its sales channel
management and development activities during the year. A series of TV
commercials were produced for the Hong Kong market and broadcasted
on various local news channels. As a result, together with a wider
coverage in sales distribution channels, a strong double-digit growth
was reported in the Hong Kong market. For the overseas markets, the
Group decided to revert the Croatia and Singapore licensed offices
to a distributorship arrangement. TeleEye licensed offices were setup
in Malaysia and Turkey, in order to seek out potential opportunities
to encourage growth and deeper penetration within these markets. To
actively promote the TeleEye brand, we have taken on a wide scope of
activities and actions through various media, exhibited new products in

seminars, workshops and international exhibitions.

During the year, we have faced fierce competition from mainland China
manufacturers who are not only price leaders, but also have much
improved quality over the year. In order to widen our product range, we
have carefully selected some of them to become our suppliers for some
of the low-end and more price sensitive products. Our video management
applications encompass all TeleEye video cameras, recorders, servers
to form integrated, scalable, multi-functional and powerful video

surveillance systems to satisfy the diverse needs of users.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR ik i B 3 B

6

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Asia

Turnover for Asia (inclusive of Hong Kong, Singapore, Middle East
and other Asian countries) as a whole for the year ended 30 June
2014 decreased by 6% to approximately HK$25,916,000 (2013:
HK$27,634,000). It accounted for 69% (2013: 70%) of the Group’s
turnover. The decrease was mainly contributed by business in Middle

East region.

Europe

Turnover for Europe for the year ended 30 June 2014 dropped by 2% to
approximately HK$5,602,000 (2013: HK$5,714,000). It accounted for
15% (2013: 15%) of the Group’s turnover. Recovery was slow in Europe.
The Group expanded the sales team covering Europe in the latter part
of the year. We are in a good position to capture the coming recovery in

this region.

Africa

Business in Africa mainly came from South Africa and Mauritius.
Turnover for Africa for this year increased by 13% to approximately
HK$5,340,000 (2013: HK$4,712,000). It accounted for 14% (2013: 12%)

of the Group’s turnover.

Others

Other geographic segments mainly included the Americas and Australia.
It has contributed to about 2% (2013: 3%) of the Group’s total turnover
this year, which amounted to approximately HK$655,000 (2013:
HK$1,099,000).

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

During the year we have launched six new models of HD network
cameras, eight models of ultra-high-resolution analogue video cameras
and three models of entry-level digital video recorders. New features
have been added to strengthen the search and zooming capabilities of
recorders. An intelligent video analytic application for human flow

analysis was introduced for management of shops and malls.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In the upcoming year, the Group will begin to launch more products that
comply with ONVIF, an open standard for IP based video surveillance
products. This will enable TeleEye products to enter markets that require
an open platform and high interoperability. We will also introduce
numerous entry-level products for the price-sensitive markets. The
strategy is to carry a wider product range that will satisfy and cover a

large scale of demands in the video surveillance market globally.

The Group will continue to expand its sales and marketing team, in
order to strengthen existing sales network and to build more channels in
different countries. Besides exhibitions, advertisements, web promotion,
seminars and workshops, we will continue to focus on distribution
channel recruitment exercises. To facilitate overseas business, great
emphasis has been placed on developing more marketing and technical

support on web and mobile platforms.

Keen competition from China manufacturers remains to be a key concern
for the Group. Nonetheless as the economic outlook for European, Asian
and African countries improves, the Group is in favourable position to

capture desirable market shares and potential opportunities.

DIVIDENDS

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors” and each a “Director”)
does not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 30 June
2014 (2013: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2014, the Group employed 40 (2013: 38) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 14 (2013: 12) full time employees in
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and overseas offices. The Group’s
staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and
retirement benefits schemes contributions amounted to approximately
HK$16,162,000 (2013: HK$16,022,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s responsibility
and performance, which remain competitive with the prevailing market
rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance, retirement benefits
schemes and discretionary bonus are offered to all employees. Share
options are granted at the Directors’ discretion and under the terms and

conditions of share option scheme.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO
The Group mainly used its internal resources to finance its operations

during the year.

The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$7,844,000
as at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: HK$14,692,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage of bank and other borrowings
and long term debt over total assets, as at 30 June 2014 was 0% (30 June
2013: 0%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group did not have any borrowings during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not enter into any new significant investment during the

year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not make any material acquisition and disposal of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies for the year ended 30 June 2014.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any charge on its assets (30
June 2013: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS
Up to the current moment, the Group does not have any other plan for

material investments or capital assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were substantially
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars or British
Pounds. The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes (30 June 2013: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (30
June 2013: Nil).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT #3 K4\ Bfdi/r

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Chan Chok Ki, aged 59, is the founder and Chief Executive
Officer of TeleEye Holdings Limited and an adjunct professor of The
City University of Hong Kong (“City University”). Prior to managing
TeleEye Group on a full-time basis in 2001, Prof. Chan had lectured at
the City University for fifteen years. He has published extensively in
signal and image processing fields and has received numerous awards
including the IEEE Third Millennium Award in 2000. In 1996, the EDN
ASIA Magazine also named him an “EDN ASIA Innovator” for his
contributions in image compression research. TeleEye Group has also
won numerous awards in product innovation and business areas. Prof.
Chan is an elected member of Election Committee for the 2012 Hong

Kong Chief Executive Election.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 46, is a founder and the Chief Marketing Officer
of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal processing
and telecommunications technologies. He is presently responsible for
formulation and implementation of marketing strategies, product pricing
and positioning, and strategic management of channel distribution for the

Group.

Dr. Ma is a member in the executive committee and a sub-committee

Chairman of The Hong Kong Security Association.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours and a PhD

degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 42, is a founder and the Engineering Director of the
Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the Group and is
responsible for product design, quality control, research and development
of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer architecture, software

engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT #3 KA Bfdi/r

10

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 56, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading the
research and development team on a part-time basis with particular focus
on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan is a research veteran

in the digital signal processing and speech compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the Department of
Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is also a Director of
Signal Communications Holdings Limited, Signal Distribution Limited
and Signal Communications Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. To Ka Ho, aged 34, is currently a practicing managing director
of Cornus CPA Limited, Mr. To has over 10 years of experience in
carrying out internal and external audits for companies of various sizes
and different industries. He holds a master degree of Finance from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. To is a practicing fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; a member
of The Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors; a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; a member of
The Association of International Accountants; a member of Canadian
Certified General Accountants Association; a Certified Internal Auditor;
and a member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified
Tax Adviser (HK).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Prof. Siu Wan Chi, aged 64, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently Chair Professor
of the Department of Electronic and Information Engineering and
Director of the Centre for Signal Processing, The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He was the Head of the same department and Dean of
Engineering Faculty between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the United
States and the People’s Republic of China, general chair of world-
class international conferences, and Chairman of academic/professional
assessment panels. Prof. Siu obtained his master of philosophy degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of
London, United Kingdom.

Prof. Ching Pak Chung, BBS, aged 60, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching is
presently Pro-Vice-Chancellor and Director of the Shun Hing Institute
of Advanced Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(“CUHK”). He was elected Dean of Engineering from 1998 till end of
2003. Prof. Ching pursued his studies at the University of Liverpool of
United Kingdom. He received his bachelor’s degree (first class honors)
and doctoral degree in 1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued
his research at School of Electrical Engineering of the University of
Bath and was back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching
at the Department of Electronic Engineering of the then Hong Kong
Polytechnic. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of Electronic
Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor in 1999.
Prof. Ching was conferred the Degree of Doctor of Engineering (honoris
causa) by the University of Liverpool in 2012.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various professional
activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, and the Institute of Electrical and Electronic
Engineers, he was an elected Council Member of the Institution of
Electrical Engineers between 2002 and 2005. Prof. Ching also devotes
his time on public services. He was a member of the Consumer Council,
Chairman of the Hong Kong Accreditation Advisory Board, a member
of the Electrical Safety Advisory Committee, a Council member of the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, a member of the Copyright
Tribunal, a panel member of the Research Grants Council of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“SAR”) and a member of the
Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council. He is currently Chairman
of the Hong Kong Council for Testing and Certification, Chairman of
the Veterinary Surgeons Board of Hong Kong, member of the Steering
Committee on Innovation and Technology, and Council Member of the
Shaw Prize Foundation. In 2010, he was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) by the Hong Kong SAR Government for his contribution to
the development of innovation and technology as well as promotion of
testing and certification industry in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 15 of
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) Listing Rules (the “Code”)
takes effect from 1 January 2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed
on this report, the Company has complied with the Code by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximise the interests

of shareholders throughout the year under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Company has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities

transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three executive (“Executive”) Directors,
one non-executive (“Non-Executive”) Director and three independent
(“Independent”) Non-Executive Directors. Details of backgrounds and
qualifications of each Director are set out on the section headed “Profile

of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance and internal control
of the Group’s business operations. Executive Directors are responsible
for running the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the
Board. The Board delegates day-to-day activities to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of the business.
Management is required to present an annual budget and any proposal
for major investments and changes in business strategies for the Board’s

approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board meetings.
They are also serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the
committees on which they serve so that the management process can be

critically reviewed and controlled.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive Directors and
at least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Each Independent Non-Executive Director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence. The Company had expressed the view in
its circular that Independent Non-Executive Director who was eligible
for re-election had met the independence guidelines of the GEM Listing
Rules. In respect of an Independent Non-Executive Director who served
more than nine years, the Company had expressed its view in circular as
regards such Director’s independence.

The list of Directors and their role and function are published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company.

As part of the continuous professional development programme, Directors
participated in various briefings, training and seminars as arranged by the
Company with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions, duties and
responsibilities of Directors as well as latest listing rule amendment.

Each Director ensures that he can give sufficient time, commitments and
attention to the affairs of the Company for the year.

The Board is provided with monthly financial summaries which contain
year-to-date key figures of the Group. The monthly financial summaries
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed regularly.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company. There were five regular Board
meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2014. Details of the
attendance of the Board are as follows:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Directors EHEH W AR

Executive Directors BATEDR

Prof. Chan Chok Ki BRAE HE A% 5/5
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (L AT )

Dr. Ma Chi Kit 5B 5/5

Mr. Ho Ka Ho LE L & 5/5

Non-Executive Director AT

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat B A B 1t 3/5

Independent Non-Executive Directors B JE AT 9

Mr. To Ka Ho iR il 4/5

Prof. Siu Wan Chi IR €id 4/5

Prof. Ching Pak Chung AR TP HI7 4/5
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and monitor the
business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly, half-yearly
and annual results, as well as discuss and decide on other significant
matters. The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each Board
meeting by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comment
and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are
open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

At present, Prof. Chan Chok Ki is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group’s business. Prof. Chan has been both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its incorporation. The
Board considers that Prof. Chan has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s
business and can make appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently.
The combination of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
can effectively formulate and implement the Group’s strategies. The
Board also considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals, meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the operations
of the Group. The Group considers that, at its present size, there is no
imminent need to segregate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code Provision A.4.2
stipulates that all Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment, and every Director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

At present, the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. In
addition, not every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Directors are subject to rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company (that at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third, shall retire from office) provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman of the Board and/or the managing
Director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of Directors to retire in each year. As such, with the exception
of the Chairman, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board
considers that the continuity of office of the Chairman provides the
Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of great importance to the
smooth operations of the Group. Therefore, for stability reasons, there is
no imminent need to amend the Articles of Association of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company will seek to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors and measurable criteria, including
gender, age, cultural and education background, industry experience,
qualifications, skills, knowledge, and professional ethics. The committee
when considering new appointment will take into account the current
composition of the Board as well as the potential candidates’ background.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and the
candidates will be considered against objective criteria of their potential
contributions to the Board and the Company, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is supported by
three Board committees. Each committee has its defined scope of duties
and terms of reference and the committee members are empowered
to make decisions on matters within the terms of reference of each
committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly
reports and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The audit committee has four
members comprising the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. To Ka Ho, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof.
Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat. Mr. To Ka Ho, is the Chairman of the audit
committee.

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results have been
reviewed by the audit committee. It has also reviewed the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014
with management and the Company’s external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board. The audit committee had
held four meetings during the current financial year. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is as
follows:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Directors WA W B R
Non-Executive Director AT E S

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat B AR 3/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors LR R R

Mr. To Ka Ho st 4/4
Prof. Siu Wan Chi [LBIRIEEZ €5 4/4
Prof. Ching Pak Chung FEAA P #R 3/4
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR# A 2 ]

Audit Committee (continued)

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings,
draft and final versions of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments,
approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the audit committee are granted the authority to
full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the Company
and any employees, consultants and advisers they may, from time
to time, wish to consult.

The Company formalised the procedures for reporting possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting, internal control or
other matters into a whistleblowing policy to encourage employees
and related third parties (such as customers and suppliers) who
deal with the Company to raise concerns in confidence about
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in any matters related to
the Company. Detailed procedures are posted on the website of the
Company.

The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

. Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing
advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this regard:

. members of the committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the person appointed as the
Company’s qualified accountant and the committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
external auditors without the presence of the
management; and

. the committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s qualified accountant, compliance officer
or auditors.

. Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting
and internal control procedures.

. Reviewing the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience as well as training programmes of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in specific terms
of reference. The terms of reference have been amended to reflect
changes arising from the revised code, which is posted on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

(2

3

Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
remuneration committee in September 2005 and the primary
duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. The
remuneration committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung
and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat. The Chairman of the committee is Prof. Siu Wan Chi. It is
scheduled to meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary

for the transaction of business is two.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers
that the existing terms of the service contracts are fair and

reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee have
been amended to reflect changes arising from the revised code,
which is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established an nomination committee on 30
March 2012. The primary duties of the nomination committee
are to select and nominate individuals for directorship as well as
making recommendations to the Board on nomination policy. The
nomination committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung
and one Executive Director, namely, Prof. Chan Chok Ki. The
Chairman of the committee is Prof. Chan Chok Ki. The committee
shall meet not less than once a year and the quorum shall be two

members.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee is

posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

HRFRHG ()

(2

3
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and any question of
resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee is to be negotiated
with management of the Company, and annually analysed for the
audit committee’s review. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by the external

auditors in relation to their independence.

The remuneration paid or payable in respect of services provided by the
external auditors for the year ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 is analysed

as follows:

Annual audit A F A
Non-audit services FE R BUR TS
— interim result review — A AR R

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and, in particular, use annual general meeting or other general meetings
to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation
in such meetings. The Company regards the annual general meeting
as an important event in the corporate year and Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend and answer questions from
shareholders about the business and performance. Last year, the Chairmen
of all Board Committees attended the annual general meeting and made
themselves available for the shareholders’ questions. Representatives
(usually the engagement partner and manager-in-charge) of the external
auditors also attended the annual general meeting and explained to
shareholders relating to the conduct of their audit of the Company’s

financial statements.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the re-election of individual
Directors. The notice of the meeting, the annual report and the
circular containing information on the proposed resolutions are sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before the meeting. The
voting procedures are according to the Listing Rules requirement. Poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on the business day following the general meeting.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The most recent shareholders’ meeting was the annual general meeting
held on 25 October 2013 at our head office. All resolutions put to
shareholders were passed at the 2013 annual general meeting. The
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be held at our head
office on Friday, 31 October 2014 at 10:30 a.m.

To promote communication, the Company maintains our website where
the shareholders communication policy is posted. The procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meeting include a
written notice of proposals being submitted by shareholders, addressed
to the Company Secretary of the Company at our head office. Specific
enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be sent in
writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office. Other
general enquiries can be directed to the Company through the Company’s

website.

Further, procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company is posted on our website. For such purpose, the
shareholders must send to the address of our head office a written notice
which identifies the candidate and includes a notice in writing by that
candidate of his/her willingness to be so elected. Detailed procedures are

posted on the website of the Company.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the

Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements and the
auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report

on page 29 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control
periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal control system.
The Company convened meetings periodically to discuss financial,
operational and risk management control. The audit committee has
discussed the internal control process with the management of the

Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

The external auditor performs independent statutory audit on the Group’s
financial statements. As part of the audit engagement, the external auditor
also reports to the audit committee any significant deficiencies (if any) in
the Group’s internal control system which might come to their attention

during the course of audit.

A policy on handling and dissemination of inside information was
established, setting out the guiding principles, procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner in such a way that it did not place any person in a
privileged dealing position and allow time for the market to price the

shares of the Company to reflect the latest available information.

GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Company develops and maintains competence levels and ethical
behaviour of staff members. These include clear competence criteria for
staff members and strong commitment to staff training and development.
To equip staff members to meet future challenges and professional
requirements, the Company offers a wide range of training and
development programmes in the areas sales, products, operations and

compliance.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good corporate
governance can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and
safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Company will keep on reviewing
its corporate governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the
required practices and standards including the provisions of the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on page 31.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company

are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in Note 23

to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2014:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 32% of the

Group’s total turnover.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 23% and 54% respectively of the Group’s total purchases (not

including purchases of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange) or any sharecholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the Group’s five largest

suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
as at 30 June 2014 comprised share premium, share options reserve and
retained profits in aggregate amounting to approximately HK$18,380,000
(2013: HK$28,759,000) provided that, after distribution, the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-Executive Director:
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. To Ka Ho (appointed on 25 October 2013)

Mr. Yu Hon To, David (resigned on 25 October 2013)
Prof. Siu Wan Chi

Prof. Ching Pak Chung

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Ho Ka Ho and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The term of office of each Non-Executive Director is the period up to
his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1 April 2001,
which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party

by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy agreement
with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which he has agreed
to act as a research and development consultant to the Group on a part-
time basis. The service period of such agreement has been extended and
will continue unless and until terminated by either party by giving three

months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS
At 30 June 2014, the interests of the Directors, Chief Executive and their

associates in the shares and share options of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each of the Company

Name of Directors

w4

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
WA B %

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat
PR B 1

(b) Share options

Name of Directors

HREH

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
PR AE B B

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
B

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
LE L S

Capacity
S

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
H 52 22 il i B R A (A 1)
Beneficial owner

A A

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
H sz 2k B R A (AT 1)
Beneficial owner

5 2PN

Capacity
54

Beneficial owner (Note 2 and 3)
Ha AN (2 K 3)

Beneficial owner (Note 2 and 3)
HaR A N (M2 K 3)

Beneficial owner (Note 2 and 3)
HaR AN (a2 K3)

o B BATBON EUR JBe Ay e ik JBe HiE 2 Al 2

hoFE—EANH=1H

 ARPECGE I 2 B )

([ 78 25 By B o) 1) 565 352k > SRR SR CAI R L7l
BLRI) 55 5.46 IR 7038 FIAS 3 7] SO S i 2 Bl E >
F o EEATENB RS 2B BN LR AR R B
A AT A W 32 P (SRR o B 0 B e 91 ) 5+ TR 2 5E
%) 2 el MR b A 2 RERR U0 T

A b A
(a) A2 ) JBe i 4 0.2 W8 0 2 ¥ i Mk
Number of Percentage of
issued the issued
ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
it Ay A2 F B AT
B EH JBe AT Ay e
7,800,000 56.91%
233,016 1.7%
7,800,000 56.91%
6,500 0.05%
(b) N IBLHE
Number of Number of
share underlying
options held shares
T4 0 JB B I8 B
YH ¥H
114,677 114,677
114,677 114,677
114,677 114,677
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN

SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Company’s 2003 share option scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Category 1: Directors
M

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
A R

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
HEA L

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
P S

Total Directors
A

Category 2: Employees
BUW2: EHE
Employees

& &

Total employees
g 8 &t

Total (all categories)

aat (A%

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR# A 2 ]

Date of grant
BiHM

4 August 2004
ZERFAE /M H

23 June 2010

CE RN T ZEH
4 August 2004
ZREPDAENA T H

23 June 2010
ZE-FREAN =R
4 August 2004
ZEREPE/NA MY H

23 June 2010

S E—BEN =

4 August 2004
ZARENAE/NAMA

23 June 2010
ZE-FERAZT=H
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Exercise
price
per share

5 B AT 4 48
HKS$

T
(Note 3)
(Wit 3)

2.28

3.12

2.28

2.28

3.12

g B BTN B BB B ik IR i 2 A i ()

A1 B A ) % R R RN R

BB R B 5E 23 A -

A AR A P 2 M T

Balance Balance
at 1 July at 30 June
2013 Exercised 2014

i3 during #

Y- St 3 the year Ry
tH—H TR AR BE AH=1H
Z & (igid Z &R
53,516 (53,516) —
114,677 — 114,677
44,597 (44,597) —
114,677 — 114,677
42,048 (42,048) —
114,677 — 114,677
484,192 (140,161) 344,031
5,097 — 5,097
38,226 — 38,226
43,323 — 43,323
527,515 (140,161) 387,354
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Interest in a subsidiary company (Note 3)

Name of a Director Capacity
— LA 54

Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Non-controlling interests (Note 3)

LSFY L IR AR (M 7L 3)
Notes:
(1)  These shares, representing approximately 56.91% of the issued share

@)

3

capital of the Company as at 30 June 2014, are held by Etin City
Limited (“Etin City”), which is fully owned by Etin Tech Limited
(“Etin Tech”). Etin Tech is owned by Prof. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan
Cheung Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho Ka Ho in the proportion of
approximately 45.86%, 26.96%, 15.99% and 11.19% respectively. As
Prof. Chan Chok Ki is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
30% or more of the voting power in general meetings of Etin Tech,
he is deemed to be interested in the entire shares in the Company
held by Etin City.

The share options are granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by the Company, details of which are set out
in Note 23 to the financial statements.

The share representing approximately 5% of the issued share capital
of TeleEye Europe Limited held by Dr. Ma Chi Kit.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a subsidiary

held by a Director in trust for the Group, at 30 June 2014, none of the

Directors, the Chief Executive of the Company nor their associates

had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

g B BTN B BB B ik IR i 2 A i ()

(c) FHIE 2 Vil Z 2k (B ik 3)

O]

2

3)

Percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital of

issued ordinary the subsidiary

shares held company
T T % W) 2
WaBkHE oAk

5 5%

ATE—AEANH =T EEALAD

BEATIROAR %9 56.91% Z {3 11 Etin City Limited
(TEtin Cityl) +F # - Etin City H Etin Tech
Limited ([Etin Tech]) 2 &#47 - Etin Tech Hi
BRVESH% ~ BRAREE I 1 Bl £ T
500 oy B 41 45.86% ~ 26.96% ~ 15.99% KX
11.19% 2 LI AT o Fh i BR VR JE 2002 A7 RE 7
Etin Tech 2 B B & 1 47 i 5 42 il 76 30%
L b 2 B R o O W LR A T AT Etin
City By Z AN A A P AT HE i o

A T AR A 2 )R Ay 2 B IR A ) )
B o AT BRI O BB R RE 23

J5 B 77 TeleEye Europe Limited %
TTIRARH 5% o

B bSO e se & Mo — AR LG RE T A AL H
A W8 2 "l A Ny o > ik = F — 04RO

A=+H#"

ARFZER - FEITHABRMEFEZ

T B8N S 2 s A 2 ) AT o R 2k ) 2 AT e
i~ AR P Ay AR I v A AR AT 2 BR A -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the

year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time during

the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or
short position in the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June
2014.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors nor the management
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interests which any such

person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has four members comprising the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. To Ka Ho, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports and half-yearly
report and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising

the financial reporting and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and has
provided advice and comments thereon. The audit committee held four

meetings during the year ended 30 June 2014.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has three members comprising two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate
and make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedures for

developing policy on such remuneration.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial year
under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the existing
terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers that the existing

terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee has three members comprising two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Executive Director, namely, Prof. Chan
Chok Ki.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to select and
nominate individuals for directorship as well as making recommendations

to the Board on nomination policy.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient

public float under the listing rules within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 30 June 2014 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Y A% Sl

I{];I; X BT & <t 85 E B T A R A A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to 87, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30
June 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ching Pang
Practising Certificate Number: P05746

Hong Kong, 19 September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &4 448 B Job 2 i 5 %

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F— U4 N H =+ HIEF

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenditure

Loss before taxation
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on

translating foreign operations
Change in fair value on
available-for-sale investments

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
— Basic

— Diluted

2014 2013
RBP4 —F—=
NOTES HKS$°000 HK$°000
Mt it F#IL F oo
A 7 37,513 39,159
B LA (23,071) (22,691)
EF 14,442 16,468
HA e A 8 508 382
B85 T oy 81 AR (9,912) (9,123)
1T B (7,228) (8,278)
WF 7% K 8% 7 (4,445) (4,814)
[ /il e 48 9 (6,635) (5,365)
5B e 11 — 13
AAE FE s 1 (6,635) (5,352)
At 2 T AT 2
H 1% B GEF 7 7 M0 18 i &
JHA :
[H 6 B e A 68 2 B H T
JBE A 2 B SR 25 98) (61)
CIEE S R S < /N b=y
647 1,065
A4 Ji HA 4 T A 25 549 1,004
A4 B 2 1 S M AR (6,086) (4,348)
MRS G AR 4R
i /NEIE ZE N (6,548) (5,268)
IE ¥ I A 4 87) (84)
(6,635) (5,352)
R H1 N HE A AS 4R
A TH 7 H HAER
EiN/NIE SN (5,956) (4,274)
IE P I 25 (130) (74)
(6,086) (4,348)
3 18 12
— FEAR 48 cents #EAill 42 cents # 1l
— 48 cents il 42 cents #EAIl
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &8 WM# R

At 30 June 2014 A —F—PU4ExH =+H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capitalised development costs

Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FH L ) ¢
UE BN Y& ]
BRI A EAAL
A R

i By ¢
UEas
B AR K B HAt B Ak
SRAT A B S Bl

i B £ 4
B A R i B HL At R A+

i ) ¥

B8 7 WA B £ £

YA B fif
e A
ik i

Ao AR NG 2 R 4
I fe P i

A2

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 87 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 September 2014

and are signed on its behalf by:

PROF. CHAN CHOK KI Bfifi: 28 % 4%

DIRECTOR # %

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]
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NOTES HKS$’000 HK$'000
it T Tt
13 252 379
14 3,077 2,980
16 6,948 6,278
10,277 9,637
17 9,415 10,824
18 4,220 4,389
19 7,844 14,692
21,479 29,905
20 2,435 4,455
19,044 25,450
29,321 35,087
22 2,741 2,713
27,019 32,683
29,760 35,396
(439) (309)
29,321 35,087
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S5 IR DL

At 30 June 2014 A —F—PU4ExH =+H

Non-current asset e Y e
Investment in a subsidiary A S 7 2 A
Current assets B E
Prepayments TEAT IR
Amounts due from subsidiaries JARE W o JB 2 ) R TR
Bank balances SRAT AR
Current liabilities i B £ 4%
Accruals AR E A
Net current assets Ui B
Total assets less current liabilities HOE 7 W B A A
Capital and reserves W AN B ik A
Share capital A
Reserves frts 5
Total equity BB 23

PROF. CHAN CHOK KI Bi{E3L %4

DIRECTOR ##

2014 2013

e S 1 E: ZFE AR

NOTES HKS$°000 HKS$°000
it T Tt
15 10 10
64 65

21 19,802 30,364
19 2,045 1,767
21,911 32,196

800 734

21,111 31,462

21,121 31,472

22 2,741 2,713
25 18,380 28,759
21,121 31,472

MR. HO KA HO % 2%k
DIRECTOR #%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY A HERE B«

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F— U4 N H =+ HIEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

34

[LYTE N 1]
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Translation  revaluation options Special  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total nterests Total
- B RR ) L
BA - RBENM ERRE TG BB BURE R it ] it
HKS 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HES 000 HES 000 HKS 000 HES 000
it it Tt it T T#1 T it it it
(Note)
(W)
At Tuly 2012 M-E-ZELR-A 1,808 2817 (129) (202) 102 14,99 (5,229) 34078 (2%) 3384
Loss for the year KBS = = - - - - (5,268) (5,268) (84) (5,352)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ AEFHIARE ) /i
income for the year
Exchange differences arising on RSS2 KB T
translting foreign operations EECERER - = (1) = = = = (1) 10 (61)
Change in fair value on Mtk EREATEES
available-for-sale investments - - - 1,065 - - - 1,065 - 1,065
= = () 1,005 - - - 994 10 1,004
Total comprehensive (expense)) REEAH (L) /
income_for the year gL - - (1) 1,065 - - (5,268) (4.074) (T4) (4.348)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise  fr BEREE (TR
of share options | 30 - - (17 - - 14 - 14
Issue of ordinary shares by way of  WAREERRAEMLER
apen offer 904 4674 - - - - — 5578 — 5578
Share options lapsed BlEEA = - - - (20 - 20 = = =
At 30 June 2013 RZ-ZFAA=1H 2113 26,521 (199) 863 985 14990 (10477) 35,396 (309 35,087
Loss for the year KEEER = = = = = = (6,548) (6,548) (87) (6.633)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ REFHMWARE () /i
income for the year
Exchange differences arising on RISSNE CREMm
translating foreign operations EEZERES - - (] - - - - (53) ®) (%)
Change in fair value on At ERE AT RS
available-for-sale investments - - - 047 - - - 047 - 047
- - (53) 647 - - - 59 (#3) 549
Total comprehensive (expense)/ REERH () /
income for the year et - - (55) 647 - - (6,548) (5,956) (130 (6,086)
Tssue of ordinary shares upon exercise 7 R B TEER
of share options ph) 292 - - - - - 30 - 30
At 30 June 2014 REF-BERAZTH 14 26813 (254) 1,510 985 1499 (17,025) 29760 (49) PR
Note: Mt -

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the aggregate
of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a
group reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE Bk

For the year ended 30 June 2014 8% % —

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of capitalised development costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) for obsolete stocks
Write down of inventories
(Reversal of allowance)/Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts

Dividend income from listed equity securities
Interest income from bank deposits
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Decrease/(Increase) in inventories

Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other receivables

(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

Interest received
Tax refunded

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income received

Increase in capitalised development costs
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

PN H =+ B IREE

2014 2013
TR SR
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
F Fitor
BELEH
W i e 4R (6,635) (5,365)
BT B IE H A R

I WN TN [Pk 1 1,096 997

W2k - R Bt 2 I 248 540

REL S (B ) 352 (659)

17 sk 150 519

SRR (BRI A

(68) 202

Hﬁffé MBS 2 BRI A 471) (264)

FIAE A B A m (1
&E%% BB K st 2 1A 23 6
(5,306) (4,025)

&R/ (3 907 (320)
M B 2 B EL At JE ek e >

(389m) 237 @)
JRE 5T B R R E Al At 3k (i 2)

Ham (2,020) 65
JRE R A 4545 26T 2 Bl & (6,182) (4,287)
EAL&l)s) 1 1
£ R BiIA — 70
JE R 488 2% SE 2 B 4 (6,181) (4,216)
BB
BB Bl A 471 264
B LA G AL 38 (1,193) (1,229)
WA ~ Bk Rkt (138) (89)
HE R RS B SR 2 BL A (860) (1,054)
W
BAT AR 2 P 5 A 320 5,592
ViHBEREZ BT 5

320 5,592
B4 RBE%EH (W),
B4 I35 (6,721) 322
TAER 2 B4 B B4 S
14,692 14,431
R 55 ) 2 3
(127 (61)
MERZ B BB &S
RPGRAT 45 0% M B & 7,844 14,692
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 0 WA 5 A ik

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Its ultimate holding company is Etin Tech Limited
(“Etin Tech”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate

Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests

in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKEFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKEFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKEFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a

Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aot 0 WA 5 A ik

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

New and revised Standards on consolidation and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of standards on consolidation and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements, together with the
amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding

transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it

deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an
investor has control over an investee when a) it has power over the
investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and c) has the ability to use its
power to affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met
for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously, control
was defined as the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Additional guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain

when an investor has control over an investee.

The Directors made an assessment as at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. 1 July 2013) and concluded that
the adoption of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement

with the investees as at 1 July 2013.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application
of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS
13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS
13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories or value

in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in
the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions. Fair value
under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. Other than the
additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.
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2.

—WEANAETHILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKEFRS 14

HKEFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 27
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures?

Investment Entities'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements’
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new and revised

HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

C has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks

and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign

currency borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to

hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

. exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from

equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation

reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in

profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 1 July 2005

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to

profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees before 1 July 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as
share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their

exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aot 0 WA 5 A ik

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the

business combination.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible

assets below).

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and
development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been

demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to

the intangible asset during its development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and
development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as

intangible assets acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset

is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable

and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of

the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or
loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or

loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of one month, observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest

rate.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. In respect
of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an

effective interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of

the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at the
end of the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items especially technology solution system
identified that are of minimal resale value due to technological
changes. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventory based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting

period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined by
the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the capitalised development costs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
Group carries out an impairment review assessment on a product-
by-product basis in respect of the capitalised development costs at
the end of the reporting period and no impairment is made for the
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances

may be required.
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S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

()

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

— Trade and other receivables

— Bank balances and cash

Available-for-sale investments

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost:

— Trade and other payables

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

— Amounts due from subsidiaries

— Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost:

— Accruals
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(a) EWTHAHE
The Group
S .|

2014 2013
e e
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x R
3,276 3,940
7,844 14,692
11,120 18,632
6,948 6,278
2,363 3,777

The Company

A 2w

2014 2013
—F—W4E —F=4
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
Fitr: T
19,802 30,364
2,045 1,767
21,847 32,131
800 734
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

5. 4&WTH)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) B R e 4 B R e R
The Group’s major financial instruments include available- AAE B 2 23 4 i T B AL A e
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, bank B AR S A R ik - SR AT 45 R
balances and cash and trade and other payables. Details of BB 4 D B JRE A R R e th JE A K -
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. A B 25 S T H 2 R R A A B
The risks associated with these financial instruments include NEGT RN Ay = ) RO
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price T 35 JEL B (5 W Rl B ~ R R L g B At A
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how Hs SV ) ~ A 4 o B i ) e R o
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management B D 5% 5 R < BOUR B A T S o B
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate I A5 B % W AR A5 R B o DA PR A
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. R A SO B AT A 2 o
Market risk 5 g
(i)  Currency risk i) EEE
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency 7 45 [ 25 T Mg A | D AN AT E
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign B o A A T T B A R B o A
currency risk. Approximately 63% (2013: 66%) of the L EFEA63% (—F— =4 :
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than 66%) & LIE 8 & 2 AL B ER 2
the functional currency of the group entity making TRe B B DS 2 5 HIME TR
the sale, whilst almost 43% (2013: 42%) of costs are 43% (ZF — Z4F 0 42%) Z LA DA
denominated in the group entity’s functional currencies. ALEH B 2 RE B (E o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies AR H o AR B DA By A
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 2R E R R AR AR
the reporting date are as follows: fEUF -
Liabilities Assets
£ 4% < g7
2014 2013 2014 2013
e S EI = e SIS R
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#oC T T T#7r T T
GBP LB 401 336 1,301 2,260
RMB NG 963 922 1,042 960

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Directors continuously
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.
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S.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

()

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuations in GBP and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2013: 5%) increase and decrease in Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
(2013: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchanges
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in
loss where Hong Kong dollars weaken 5% (2013: 5%)
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2013: 5%)
strengthening of Hong Kong dollars against the relevant
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact

on the loss, and the balances below would be negative.

5. &R
(b) V5 Rl e 4 B R e R (%51

7 53 b, g ()

()

Impact of GBP

Bk ()

U 7

74 ) T S B N R B
R

2 FE G A 4R [ 35 o A A B
G W 2 BERAEH BL5% (. F — =
Bt 5%) B IR 2 SRR o 5% (-
Fr— AR 0 5%) T AT T A
N B RE i & e L 55 IR i 7 P 22
JE > 3l 7 5 B T S B ]
AR B 2 BEA o U EE A BT LA
DLANIS By B 2 RAER B TH E
S R 2 L A SR R TR 1 i T R

B 5% (FE—=4F : 5%) M HEZ
P& o FEHIIE#ER RS THHEA
1 Ml 55 504 (T — = 4E 1 59)

IR s 4 Bl B At 2 oD o
TCAHS G B B 5% (R —=
0 5%) > BRI S A
R EMES=F A i =
%{ °

Impact of RMB

P2 5B AR 25 %
2014 2013 2014 2013
W S-S SRWE SF S
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
F#x T T F#oC T T
Profit or loss F) 1 B s 8 45 32 4 5
Interest rate risk (ii)  FIFEE S

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The Directors
consider the Group’s exposure of bank balances to
interest rate risk is not significant as fluctuation of
savings interest rates on bank balance is minimal. The
Group currently does not have a policy on hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the Directors monitor
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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S.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. In addition, the
Directors monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the

reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity investments
had been 5% (2013: 5%) higher/lower, investment
revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$347,000 (2013: HK$314,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale

investments.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical

areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
The maturity dates for financial liabilities are based on the

agreed repayment dates.

5. 4&WTH)

(b)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity tables

THE GROUP

2014

Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

2013
Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payables

THE COMPANY

2014
Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Accruals

2013
Non-derivative financial
liabilities

Accruals

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]
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5. 4&WTH)

(b)

On demand

or less than

Yo 5 o, e 4 L RS e O ()
I T B 2 R ()
B B 7
Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted the end of the

3 months cash flows reporting period
ook ok KW BLBL & R A
A 3 ) i 4 2 i
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T T T#T
2,363 2,363 2,363

3,777 3,777 3,777
Carrying

On demand Total amount at
or less than undiscounted the end of the
3 months cash flows reporting period
R ER B AW BB 4 3 8K
i3 A o H AR Z W i fE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000

T 7T T8 T 7T
800 800 800

734 734 734
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. &R
(¢) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) ABTHZAVEul kit
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured BER L LT i A 2 A A 2 ik g
at fair value on a recurring basis ARG

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation

technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at

RUF HMZ AP

A 42 B B 0y < R E R A O IR 2
FEGHE o TR B % S MR E
AR 2 18 52 T 15 CJL R A (BB il &% i
R 2 I A BR) 2 B -

Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets 2014 2013 hierarchy and Kkey input
£ Y9 —F A —F—-= AR AT B A R
HK$’000 HK3$’000
T#x T
Listed equity securities classified 6,948 6,278 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
as available-for-sale investments B an active market
AR ERE Y T I T 3 < A E
T R

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 and no

transfer into or out of Level 3 in the current and prior years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

T AR A BE R A AR 5 B — AR AR A
[N RS > 2 55 = ARG S A sl

B 4 e B 4 I

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AL GG S > RSB IRE A IHENE 4R 2
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the A1 o (Rl - AREORAS 4R B RE R A8 - (]
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and I 2 400 i R 2 [l o A 42 ] 2 R SR B

equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

Iéserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new

share issues as well as the issue of new debt.

Annual Report 2014 43

KA -

AL 2 AL AL AL F A 4G HE 2
(L% OB AT A B fib ) -

EHG T EA LN o IR 2 —
or o A E R B A A A U A 2
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AL o
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was a follows:

Debt (i) 'ﬁéﬁ%(]}
Equity (ii) WE % (ii)
Gearing ratio EARAER

(i) Debt is defined as borrowings.
(ii)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and allowances to outside customers during the

year.

The Group’s reportable and operating segment have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker of the Group, for the purpose of resource allocation

and assessment of segment performance.

The Executive Directors regularly review revenue and overall
operating results derived from research and development and sales
and marketing of video surveillance systems and consider them as

one single reportable and operating segment.
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6.

4 W B 4 P (480
RERZ BARAFERMT

2014 2013
R YA T
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T oc
29,760 35,396
—% —%

() EHETIERLAMEE -
(i) R g A A T R e A

WA B 23 OB Y
WASRAENBIIMRE F & B G2 e
W SR TR AR i S Y 22 R o

A G ] 2 ) 5 % T T % R B R
o AT BRI T EAT G A i RS i R R
FRIEGRG R - T EE R ERZERE
PR HE ) E BB > DAY AL IR K R A
MEBHED -

Wi EHE M FENR G EERAZ0MEE > #HE
Be it Sy 4fe B BT 7 2R 2 i a R B AR S A - I
25— B — T 2 S
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7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC and the
United Kingdom (“UK”).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the geographical location of customers.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented

based on the geographical location of the assets.

7. WA B BUEORH (B

H I 2R
A48 ] 2 S AL A A W R B B B ([ 3
B]) e

A B A B AR 3N F WA Z BRI E R
Priehlm 25 o FRALEIEREEREIEE
FE PR TEHL 2 5] o

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

R HEIE P ZBA F it Y 85
2014 2013 2014 2013
TR WA = e S LIS R
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T#oC T T T#x T T
Asia GHE 25,916 27,634 3,257 3,303
Europe Ee/] 5,602 5,714 72 56
Africa FE 5,340 4,712 — —
Others HAthy 655 1,099 — —
37,513 39,159 3,329 3,359

Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

Customer A EF A
Customer B %5 B

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
sales of the Group.

MFRE < I U ) Y AN LA AT 8 e R o

% P 2% R
TP A JRE A B A A A [ B A 10% 2 & T IR
AUF
2014 2013
- S U E: —as— =t
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x TFit5T0
4,620 4,398
N/A' A H ! 4,877

! B MSC AL A S ) 4 80 6 S J A 10% o
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68

8. OTHER INCOME 8. JU{BBA
2014 2013
TR R
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#L Fi#oT
Other income is analysed as follows: HAA Z 0 HrinF -
Dividend income from listed equity b TR g R R S 2 B R A
securities 471 264
Interest income from bank deposits SRATAE A S e A 1 1
Bad debt recovery iz Il 352 R — 42
Others HiAtl 36 75
508 382
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9.  BRBEw N #H
2014 2013
TR WA —F =
HKS$’000 HK$°000
F#o Tt o
Loss before taxation has been arrived at [EBIHIEGHEE 1% (FEA) ¢
after charging/(crediting):
Staff salaries and other benefits B L34 K Ath 4 A
(including directors’ remuneration) (6045 25 =5 1 ) 15,531 15,383
Retirement benefits schemes PN RS R
contributions 631 639
Total staff costs FLY= BN 16,162 16,022
Less: Amount capitalised as B AAL N B AR B AR
development costs Z KT (1,193) (1,229)
14,969 14,793
Allowance/(Reversal of allowance) SRETEEBE (B )
for obsolete stocks (included in cost (2 FASHE HA)
of sales) 352 (659)
Amortisation of capitalised development %5 J& 78 & AL 2 # £
costs (included in research and (T A A5 B s e S i)
development expenditure) 1,096 997
Auditors’ remuneration A% S0 ] 4 341 322
Depreciation of property, plant and Y2~ RE S 2 P e
equipment 248 540
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEYZE ~ MiFE &kfiz
equipment &5 48 23 6
Net foreign exchange gain [FE 52, 1A 2 V% H (476) )
(Reversal of allowance)/Allowance SRR (BRI
for bad and doubtful debts (68) 202
Write down of inventories A7 B Bk
(included in cost of sales) (ELFI A §1 8 liAR) 150 519

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. #d - BEATBONH KR B4

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2013: seven) BT EEA N (—FE— =4 ) EFELH
Directors were as follows: Z M
2014 2Py

Prof. Dr. Prof. Prof. Mr.

Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Chan Siu Ching Mr. To Yu Hon

Chok Ki Chi Kit Ka Ho Cheung Fat ~ Wan Chi Pak Chung KaHo  To David Total

Bl B BABNL WERERE WHENL EARBR RMhas REEEE WEERA At
HKS$’000  HKS’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000  HKS$’000  HKS’000
T#r T#z T#x T#r T#xz T#x T#r T#x T#r

(note (i))  (note (ii)
(W) (Wi i)

Fees 14 — — — — 60 60 60 19 199
Other emoluments HAm4
Salaries and other benefits  #r4 K E A A1 2,294 1,044 960 187 — — — — 4,485
Contributions to retirement AR RAEFIZH# Azt
benefits schemes 15 15 15 — — — — — 45
Total emoluments 4 2,309 1,059 975 187 60 60 60 19 4,729
2013 —E AR
Prof. Prof. Prof.
Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Dr. Chan Siu Ching  Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi  Pak Chung To David Total

REEEAE BuliEt MRREE  REREE BARAR  BAVAR 6EDE At
HKS$000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
T Tk T Tt T Tk T Tk

Fees e = = - — 60 00 00 180
Other emoluments HA 4

Salaries and other benefits Fie AR 2,294 930 960 187 — = = 4371

Contributions to retirement HEL Vil i

benefits schemes 15 15 15 — — — — 45

Total emoluments ol 2,309 945 975 187 60 60 60 4,596
Notes: Mt -
(i)  Appointed on 25 October 2013 () REF=H+AZTRHEERE
(ii)  Resigned on 25 October 2013 (i) MZF—=4FHH I HEHE
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10.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Prof. Chan Chok Ki is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as Chief Executive.

The five highest paid individuals included three (2013: three)
Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) individuals, which
fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for each of the two
years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, were as follows:

Rz S A AR A
AR ARAR A 4

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits

schemes

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no
Directors waived any emoluments during the years ended 30 June
2014 and 2013.
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10.

W BRATBON B R H 4 (41

BRAE 2 AR IS A A R 2 AT BB ER > bSO i

% 2 L 4 G4 S AF A AT BLAR B AR AL AR S 2 T
Lo

RN EREm 2 N> G =M%
— ZAE =) R BFE LU S A
FEIE o HERWINL (2 —=4F W) ALk
BB PE R T ZFNH Z 4 H R AR
A A5 A 2 B T & % 1,000,000 % G 0 R F
TR

2014 2013

R e
HK3$°000 HKS$°000
T Tt
835 767

31 30

866 797

REE_F-NFEER-_F-=FA=+HIL
T 45 B 45 4F 1 > A 452 [ 7 48 i) 28 3 o7 M
& f i 2 N b SORHAE AR AR 2 W 5| 45 A
TNAZS 5 ) 22 3% JB BC7E A A 2 1] 22 B s R 8
B S AE 2 BRI A A o MeSh > AR T — P4
B —F—ZAERA = AR W EEHK
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11.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Over provision in respect of prior
years

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax is

provided as there was no assessable profit for both years.

—WEANAETHILEE

11. Pifssiike

U A B
AR K A R R

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2013: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Over provision in respect of prior years

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Others

Tax credit for the year

2014
e
HK$°000
T#x

2013
e et
HK$’000
T

(13)

BRI

R ot i s 18

i 7 b I A5 BB K 16.5%
(ZF—=4F : 16.5%) 5B BiE
AN 0L B 52 2 Bl 22

RHERBLICA 2 B 3 2

1) oA Tl R 0 T 4R 2 B i 28

A A I R AR R A

T oAl =) i B 16 5288 R 2 ) B
RG] B 5 5

HoAt

AR 2 BE AR
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AR 2 BUTE AR S T SR £ 1R
Wi 2% 2 BRBLAT RS IR BRI T

Biwt i -

s AT B DL A 45 B 2 Al F S SRR A 4
16.5% wt 5 o F 7 1 4F I 3% 408 IR BBt i A1
I 4 R A v M 15

A FLAt ] 35 A D AR 2 B IE T 2 A B ) A [

it % FoAt 4 Th

2014 2013
it S LK —EF =4
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x TFisor
(6,635) (5,365)
(1,095) (885)

29 28

(51) (186)

1,220 1,187

— (13)

93) (144)

(10) =

— (13)

TeleEye Holdings Limited B IR 7 B4 B ]
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12. LOSS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to

the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Loss i 18

Loss for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share (Loss for the
year attributable to owners of the

Company)

Jie A 2 H

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary

8 FBE R~ 4

shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2013
has been adjusted for the effect of bonus element in connection

with the open offer in January 2013.

The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options since their

exercise would result in decrease in loss per share.
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PR wH A B S s 1R 2

I s i
AN FHRAT N TG 4 JR S AR T 8 0 s 45 T AR
AT Rt A

A DA 3 e B A K v s 18 2 s 1R
(AR F A NG A E )

2014 2013
e e
HKS$’000 HKS$°000

T#C T
(6,548) (5,268)

°000 000

TH TH
13,578 12,492

BE TSNS F LR R
15 A A B 4 2 O T O
T R AT 2 A SR 2 AR5
Z A -

P A AT (5 7 2 ) il B M1 4 B4 B 1R 2
el A8 4 B2 2 P e 1RSI AR AT A
AL
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - W Bk fhi

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicle Total
MEmEEE  BREKE  HAERM ¥l At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T TH#TT TH#IT TH#T TH#T
THE GROUP A%H
COST JA
At 1 July 2012 WoE—"4HEELA—H 481 233 2,164 784 3,662
Exchange adjustments [ 51, 77 4 — (10) — (6)
Additions NE — 89 — 89
Disposals HE — (12) (176) — (188)
At 30 June 2013 RE-F—=4EAH=1H 485 221 2,067 784 3,557
Exchange adjustments HEE b, 7 % (1) 1 57 — 57
Additions NE — 6 132 — 138
Disposals HE (34) ) (143) — (186)
At 30 June 2014 R=F—WEANH=Z1H 450 219 2,113 784 3,566
DEPRECIATION itk
At 1 July 2012 WoF——FLHA—H 441 208 1,747 430 2,826
Exchange adjustments e i, 5 4 — (10) — (6)
Provided for the year AR FEFTHR 17 11 278 234 540
Eliminated on disposals H B I f B — (12) (170) — (182)
At 30 June 2013 ZE—ZMEARAZTH 462 207 1,845 664 3,178
Exchange adjustments @Eﬁ]ﬁﬁé (1) 2 50 — 51
Provided for the year ENGH R 2 6 120 120 248
Eliminated on disposals HH B I A B (13) ) (141) — (163)
At 30 June 2014 RoF—NEAAZTH 450 206 1,874 784 3,314
CARRYING AMOUNTS I i L
At 30 June 2014 REF—WEAH=Z1H — 13 239 — 252
At 30 June 2013 “ZF-=FA A=1H 23 14 222 120 379

L2 - s i E T LB SRR

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: SRR -

Leasehold improvements  20%-33%% or over the lease term, HEWEEE 20%-33%:% S AH B -
whichever is shorter DB S 1y U

Furniture and fixtures 20% ELIYEF N 20%

Office equipment 20%-33%% N %M 20%-33%%

Motor vehicle 33%% TRHL 33%%
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THE GROUP
COST

At 1 July 2012
Additions

At 30 June 2013
Additions

At 30 June 2014

AMORTISATION
At 1 July 2012
Provided for the year

At 30 June 2013
Provided for the year

At 30 June 2014

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 30 June 2014

At 30 June 2013

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using the

straight-line method over three years from the date it is available

for use.

The Directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised
development costs at the end of the reporting period with reference
to the discounted future cash flows from the products developed.

They determined that no impairment loss should be made at 30

June 2014 and 2013.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

14. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS
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14. BREAEARL

ACSE 1
L%
WoF LA —H
WE

MEF—=4FA=1H
A

BREF-WEAA=1H
]
REF—-ZFLA—H
A B

RoE-=FARNA=1H
AR AR

REF—WEANH=1TH

i i ¥
REF—WEAA=1H

RoE-=FEARNA=1H

Total
At
HK$°000
T

14,039
1,229

15,268
1,193

16,461

11,291
997

12,288
1,096

13,384

3,077

2,980

O BfERD o B 2 BB A - e HaT L H
A F = AR S0 ] DA A g

HHOSHECOHEE N 2B RR A &R E
AR PR A T B AL B R A 2 AR TEIE o
Eb o MoF—ER -FE—ZFANH =T
H B 28 5 Wl s 1R 3 A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aot 0 WA 5 A ik

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

15. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Unlisted shares, at cost

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

W 2+ )

Signal Communications Holdings
Limited

SiCOM China Limited

SiCOM Europe Limited

SiCOM Japan Limited

Signal Communications Limited

TERMHARRA

Signal Distribution Limited

TeleEye Europe Limited

TeleEye Solutions Limited
TRREERGARAA

TR IRHEERE ()
AR (Note) (47

Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
ML/ it
RERBS

BVI
HRELHE

BVI
ERE LG

BVI
HRELAHE

BVI
HRELHE

Hong Kong
Fib

Hong Kong
Fik

UK

|
Hong Kong
Hik

PRC
Gl

I BT > AR

Paid up and issued/
registered capital
Sencut/
it WA

HK$15,000,000
15,000,000 1©.

N
1£7

Ussl
17

Uss!
1£7

HK$1,000
1,000 ¢

HK$1,000
1,000 ¢
GBP100
100 48

HK$10

10T
US$130,000
130,000 7

end of the year or at any time during the year.

15, JRAHHE A F Z B

The Company

AR
2014 2013
R e
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T Tt
10 10

RHE IR > AR FIME A A ZFEEIT

Proportion of ownership interest held by the Company

Directly
itk
2014

“E Mk
%

100

HIAA A 2 B R
Directly Indirectly
H#% 3
2013 2014
ESE A
% %
100 -
- 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 95
— 100
- 100
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Indirectly
F3

I Sl
%

100

100

95

Principal activities

E3 27

Investment holding

et

Investment holding

BEHR

Investment holding

et

[nvestment holding

et

Research and development and sales
and marketing of video surveillance

systems :
BRERZS FRRHER
HE RS HRE
Inactive
fripas
Sales and marketing of video surveillance
systems
HEERRGHERTGER
Inactive
Tipas

Production, sales and marketing of video
surveillance systems

REEERGRE - HERTSER

BFE - s w LAARRE B A2 2 Oy G o

S A JBE A TR AR A JBE A AT Ry ] A0 - AR S A
J& o~ TR AL OB AT 2 B R S o
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 16. {5 B %
The Group
A AR
2014 2013
it Sl UK S —E =4
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong Bt b i i R 6,948 6,278

R R > B A B E I DL E S
i o ZERE LN HEIZ B ERTIG R
BAE I E

At the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

76

17. INVENTORIES 17. #8
The Group
% 3|
2014 2013
it 2K —E =4
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# Tt o
Raw materials JE B 5,187 5,707
Finished goods BT 4,228 5,117
9,415 10,824

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18.  MEWSCIR k Be 3 Atb i Wk

JRE i S

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful

debts
Prepayments, deposits and other TEAT 3RIE ~ i 4 T HoAh E ik
receivables

Total trade and other receivables

The Group allows an average credit period of one month to certain
of its trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) at the end
of the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date

of sales invoice:

Current and less than 1 month overdue RVHA K g HA /04t 14 A
1 to 3 months overdue w1 2 318 H
More than 3 months overdue 740 1 e 4t 3 A

Before accepting new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customers’ credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.

Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,428,000 (2013:
HK$1,075,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss,
as the Group considered such balance could be recovered based on
historical experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

B AT R AR e At R A oK 4 A

The Group
= .|
2014 2013
R —EF =

HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
2,826 3,778
(305) (363)
2,521 3,415
1,699 974
4,220 4,389

AREELHE T AL FF R WA 25
B o TR R SR 2 645 8 S 2 B ATk H
oy HEE T A 2 MR MSOHR 3K (R SR AR 4 ) R
AT

The Group
AR M
2014 2013
it SIS —E =

HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
2,105 2,340
331 1,029
85 46
2,521 3,415

AR E AT > A G T E RS 2 F
BHE  URAEEFZGFEEE - TEF
ZRE TV EERE o

25 4R B 2 i R AR 4G B AL ARNR TE(E A A
1,428,000 i JC ( — & — =4 : 1,075,000 # JG )
ZARIE > TR RS AR S o 1 R A S
MR PR A R8> FR 2 ] LANR IR 52 45 6% > BiAs 4R
NI o B (B M 4R o A 4R 1310 0 0k % 5 4455 Bk
FEA AR AT HEA 5 o
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

Less than 3 months overdue

More than 3 months overdue

a3 48 H
8 S 2 3 8 H

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

At beginning of the year

(Reversal of allowance)/Allowance for
bad and doubtful debts

Amounts written off as uncollectible

Exchange adjustments

At end of the year

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of approximately HK$305,000 (2013: HKS$363,000) which were
past due and not recoverable as the debtors are experiencing

financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

More than 3 months overdue

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

4]

RIIR (B m)
A

B 2% S5 i [ 42 %
HE 52, 3 ¢

R

81 301 4 38 3 8 H
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18.

Rk e HE s ok (48)
001 R L O ek 2 M B
The Group
7 4 1
2014 2013
R —F =
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
1,343 1,029
85 46
1,428 1,075
R SRR 5 5 )
The Group
S .|
2014 2013
- k2 TR A
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#x T
363 172
(68) 202
— )
10 (2)
305 363

SR MR A 6 4 AR I (L 2 B AR R R A B 44
305,000 ¥ 7 (—F— —4F 1 363,000 5C) > T3
7 1A K i A N BIE B A B S I B i A g

I O NS e 37 s S R m g I T

B YT ed Y

The Group
A 45 1

2014

R
HKS$’000
T

305

2013
SE A
HK$’000
T#TT

363
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19.

20.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19.

The Group and the Company

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances carry interest
at the prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.001%
to 0.5% (2013: 0.001% to 0.4%) per annum. At 30 June 2014, the
Group had bank balances and cash that were not freely convertible
or were subject to exchange controls in the PRC amounting to
approximately HK$37,000 (2013: HK$108,000).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20.

JRE A5 B K
a5 2 ) B At A K

Trade payables
Accruals and other payables

Total trade and other payables JEAS B X e HC A JRE AT 2k 4 A

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of
the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date of

supplier’s invoice:

Current and less than 1 month overdue B Az g6 1 4988 1 8 H
1 to 3 months overdue w1 £ 318 A
More than 3 months overdue 7 1 e 4t 3 {1 H

The normal credit period on purchases of goods is one month.
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BATH DR K BL A

7 42 [ B AR 4y )

SRATE R MR B AR AR E RAAFRFEZ
B4 R JRCE s = A A 3 AR B 2 g SR AT A
K o ERATAFEIE 0.001% % 0.5% (—F—=4F ¢
0.001% 2% 0.4%) 2 Bl 47 17 %5 4 Al R 5HE o it
SR CFERA = H o AREER RHEH H L
5 52 v B 1 HE B 2 T PR 2 SR AT A7 3k X B4 4
37,000 # 0 (& — =4F : 108,000 JC) ©

HEE Ak Yk B U M A K
The Group
7 4 1
2014 2013
R R
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T T
1,015 2,553
1,420 1,902
2,435 4,455

TR S U R 1 A B 2 B S A A 2
HE TR 2 B A AR ARR I 0 AT I T

The Group
AR

2014 2013
ZR—WLE —F—=%
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
804 1,966
136 498
75 89
1,015 2,553

PRIER b2 — A5 A —MA -
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21.

22

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Less: Impairment losses recognised

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable

on demand.

An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from
subsidiaries because these subsidiaries have been making losses for

years or had deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.2

each

Authorised:
At beginning of the year and
at end of the year

Issued and fully paid:

At beginning of the year
Issue of ordinary shares upon
exercise of share options

(Note (i)
Issue of ordinary shares by
way of open offer

(Note (ii))

At end of the year

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

21, MECH)E 2 Hl sk

B Wi B Je 2 ] 3K

AFRETAE 0.2 ¥ T
29 B

HEA
TR R A #

O 8T AR A

AR

A7 A0 e R R
BEAT A A
(J13E (1))

DL BB B TR X
BEAT A B
(J13E (i)

TR #

Annual Report 2014 43

W CURERS I (E s 1R

The Company

y, N/
2014 2013
ZR AR TR
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T# T T
30,102 30,364
(10,300) —
19,802 30,364

i o

% S A AR A SRR AT~ R FE B e R R T K

FH A 5% 56 BB 23 7] 2 Bk A5 2 4F Ml 1R B0 #2330
AR M A BT A T A R 2 ) R e

R -
22. JBAs
Number of Shares Share capital
Bty ¥ H JBeA

2014 2013 2014 2013
e LK 2 —F-=4 —E WA —F =4
000 ‘000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T T T#x T T
40,000 40,000 8,000 8,000
13,566 9,039 2,713 1,808
140 5 28 1
— 4,522 — 904
13,706 13,566 2,741 2,713
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23.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1) On 29 May 2014, 140,161 share options were exercised at a
subscription price of HK$2.28 per share, resulting in the issue of
140,161 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the Company.

On 29 November 2012, 5,000 share options were exercised at a
subscription price of HK$2.9 per share, resulting in the issue of 5,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the Company.

(i1) On 8 January 2013, the Company completed an open offer of
4,522,000 shares on the basis of one new share for every two existing
shares held, at the subscription price of HK$1.4 per share. The
proceeds are intended for marketing, research and development and

to finance the Group’s general working capital requirements.

(iii)  All the shares issued by the Company during the years ended 30 June
2014 and 2013 ranked pari passu in all respects with all shares in

issue.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the “2003
Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the 2003
Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and motivate the
contribution of the employees and to provide incentives and help
the Company in retaining its existing employees and recruiting
additional employees for a term of ten years. The Board of the
Company may at its discretion grant options to any employees,
including Executive and Non-Executive Directors, advisers,
consultants, agents, contractors, customers and suppliers of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. Option may be
granted at a consideration of HK$1 and should be accepted within
5 business days from the date of grant. The option granted is
exercisable upon acceptance of and payment of consideration by
the grantee and have a duration of 10 years from their respective

vesting dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on 28 October 2003. No option shall be granted to a
grantee if the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted under the 2003
Option Scheme in any twelve months period up to and including
the date of grant to such grantee would exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being in issue.

22.

23.
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JBeAS (%)
Wzt -

() AZF—MERHATILHE > 140,161 17 8k
RECL 4 1 2.28 W5 0 2 SR AT » BT854 T
140,161 B4 B i {5 0.2 W5 J6 2 AN 5] M 8 ik o

W oE =+ —H 1+ JLH > 5,000 74 BB
ME L 15 e 2.9 W T 2 RB B AT 6 > (R 34T
5,000 A4 HBE TR (B 0.2 6 TC 2 A T 38 i o

(i) MoEF-=F—-ANH > AAFCEGHEW
e B AT I A9 28 5 — IO Ry 2 B e 5 DU
1.4 W 70 2 58 A 58 LA BH 85 5 4,522,000 ik
By o AT R EBEE R TG HEE ~ BF % JOEE R
DL BB AL 2 — B G AT OR o

(i) AAFBEE T —PE R T — SR H
=+ HILEE R 2 B A B BT A B 81T
Je 32 T A5 T A [ S b A o

ok e i it

R R AR AN BRI B b

(T =T AR BehiE st 3 1)

WER —FF=F+HA - +/\H@E R R®
R ARFERMN ET = FRERAE T > L
TR B e Bh IR B A AR ERK > A A
FBUA R B 4G T 5E M > #5 LU B 9 A > LA
FARUSAME B > sHRA R A T4 - AR F
2 A I A T A B A i B R (LA AR
EEZATRFAITESE S X B A
H o R R ) DA RR AR A A
o BESBCHERT DUAUAE 1 i o i - 30 MR 42 i
H R 00 7 26 H R A o TEARIR M K
SRR > B2 0 MR vl 7 AT > K
AR A B 2 SRR F O 2 A

AR T R B R BE o AR s AL
AR -FEZ=F+A+NAZERITHRAZ
10% o A FEAE T+ —f A 11 1] 1 22 452 o g A e
TARZAN B (BFFaz H) 1k > 28T KR
BT AR R R R TR
I PR AT {6l R ot 7 0 AT 2 B MR - AR
NEE R BT RAZ 1% MIAR AN e
[ AR A L S P o
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—WEANAETHILEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the “2003
Option Scheme”) (continued)

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Daily
Quotation Sheet on the date of grant, which must be a trading day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Daily Quotation Sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.
Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Board of the
Company may grant options in respect of which the subscription

price is fixed at different prices.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the years ended 30
June 2014 and 2013:

23.

O DB M i ()

R RRZAETH N H SRANZ 0 B RE 58
(T =R AR w31 1) (41)

RIEEAE DR TN =ZFZ EEE  )EL
ARy B (ZE A 52 5 B ) 764 H iR fE 3£
Z TR AE 5 (i) A5 m) I AE B A A O
B LA 22 5 B iR B 3R AE 2R 2 T S 0T R
5 (ii1) B T {E » 7EAHEE bz — it s Al
T AN EE F g A I L DAASRE A% 1 E 5
B2 BERHE -

TEREZF®RE _FWER F—=4HA
= H IR R AR A F AR SR T AR A R
FHEPZ 2 W RE A B R

Exercise Exercise Balance at Balance at Balance at
price price 1 July 30 June 30 June
per share  per share 2012 Exercised  Adjustment Lapsed 2013 Exercised 2014
(before (after it during during during # during it
Directors ustment ) adjustment) v S the year the year the year B4 the year _Z—4
of the Company  Date of grant h ﬁi&ﬁﬁ tH-H RN REER REER AREE REER - AAZTH
AR ES gy (WER) itk frf W 34 Zhith frf Zhith
HK$ HK$ (note)
#7 b (Hiit)
(note)
(Hit)
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 4 Au ust 2004
B ZEMENALH 2.90 2.28 45,000 (3,000) 11,516 = 53,516 (53,516) =
23 June 2010
“E-REAAZTER 3.98 3.12 90,000 — 24,677 — 114,677 — 114,677
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004
B “RENEARMA 2.90 2.8 36,000 (1,000) 9,597 = 44,507 (44,597) =
23 June 2010
ZE-EEAAZTER 3.98 3.12 90,000 — 24,677 — 114,677 — 114,677
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004
MRFEE ZZBMEAAMA 2.90 208 34,000 (1,000) 9,048 = 42,048 (42,048) =
23 June 2010
“Z-FEAAZTER 398 312 90,000 - 24,677 — 114,677 — 114,677
385,000 (5,000) 104,192 — 484,192 (140,161) 344,031
Employees of the 4 August 2004
Grou “ZEMENANH 2.90 228 4,000 — 1,097 — 5,097 — 5,097
ASE MR
23 June 2010
“E-ZERAZTEN 3.98 3.12 36,000 — 9,871 (7,645) 38,226 — 38,226
425,000 (5,000) 115,160 (7,645) 521,515 (140,161) 387,354
Exercisable at the end of the year
ERUFRE 387,354
ighted average exercise price
égwﬁ lEg HKS3.68467C HKS29W7C  NAAEA HKS3.127C HKS289M7C HKS2.28W7 HKS3.11#L

Note: The exercise price and number of share options outstanding as at 30
June 2013 and 2014 have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the
open offer on 8 January 2013.
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 23, J OB ol (4
Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the “2003 A ZEZAETH N H 3R A2 0B )
Option Scheme”) (continued) ([ =B Z AR BehE s ) (480
At 30 June 2014, the number of shares in respect of which options A E—UFEASH=TH > BT =40
had been granted under the 2003 Option Scheme represents 2.8% JECHE T 8 O 152 s B R E 0 I 2 B 1 B8 A A
(2013: 3.9%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. N AR A AT IR 2 2.8% (& — =4

3.9%) °

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the share AR N AT 2 BEICRET 5 > AT B B2 ik
price at the date of exercise is HK$3.2 (2013: HK$3.3). A 3.2W T (ZF—=4F : 3.3W7T) °

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EEEBLH

TONBAEASEE B - DR EBIE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:
Accelerated Capitaliesd
tax development
depreciation costs Tax losses Total
I BT R A AL Be I s 11 At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T T T
THE GROUP 7 4 1
At 1 July 2012 Wo_E——4ELH—H 70 453 (523) —
(Credit)/Charge to profit R (FEA) R
or loss (57) 38 19 —
At 30 June 2013 WoE—-ZFRNH=1H 13 491 (504) —
(Credit)/Charge to profit RS (FEA) 0Bk
or loss (12) 17 5) —
At 30 June 2014 REF—WEANA=ZTH 508 (509) —

At 30 June 2014, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$24,751,000 (2013: HK$17,549,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$3,081,000 (2013: 3,057,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$21,670,000 (2013: HK$14,492,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$2,198,000 (2013: HKS$2,516,000) that
will expire in one to five years. The remaining tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.
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W E—AENHA =+ H o A
A 3 & oA 28 R 22 v oK B R B TE s 1R A A
24,751,000 #5 JC (= & — = 4F : 17,549,000 %
JG) o AN AR [ B LA B R 1R H 2 3,081,000
JG (. — = 4F 1 3,057,000 % J0 ) i 52 18 4E i
THEE o A RBETEF R AR A AR - Hill 4%
WA B SRR T 221,670,000 % 06 (—F — =
4F 114,492,000 5 G ) BERRAR AR TE B2 o MR
it 5 ot T e 48 (50 4 s 1H1 49 2,198,000 #s o6 ( =%
— =4F 2,516,000 ¥ I0) > R — Z LA R |
1 o 8RN B IE e 4E R A PR 45 -

TeleEye Holdings Limited B IR 7 B4 B ]

83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 0 WA 5 A ik

84

25. RESERVES

THE COMPANY

At 1 July 2012

Loss and total
comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options

Issue of shares by way of
open offer

Share options lapsed

At 30 June 2013

Loss and total
comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of shares upon

exercise of share options

At 30 June 2014

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R ]

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # % ~F—4 N H =+ H L4

A2 i
=B — =LA —H
A 2 B 5
i

A7 A8 J W Ry 547 M 19
PAZS BA 8 85 8 84T B 1y
S B 2R K
R_F =4 H=1H
A4l 1R % A T S

B

A o B PR Ry 5 A7 PR 473

HEF—WAEANA=ZTH
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25. fif

Retained

profits/

Share (Accumulated

Share options losses)
premium reserve R AN, Total
JB A ik U B ok A ¢ i) i) At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T T T Ti#IT T T
21,817 1,022 1,468 24,307
— — (235) (235)
30 (17) — 13
4,674 — — 4,674
— (20) 20 —
26,521 985 1,253 28,759
— — (10,671) (10,671)
292 — — 292
26,813 985 (9,418) 18,380
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26.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in future

years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% of the
basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to

the retirement benefit is to make the specified contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the UK is required to make National
Insurance Contributions for certain of its employees in the
UK based on applicable rate in accordance with the relevant

government regulations.

The total costs charged to profit or loss of approximately
HK$631,000 (2013: HK$639,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting

period.

26.
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S8 PR At

T 7 s 2 BRY Ja O R 2 BELAR 9 0 o Ak S R R
3 0 1) R 2 7 R 10t R PR R (1 98 A 42wt
#1) o BB 2 H R AR W 2 E ) B
Rl > AFUR R — 2B AR NE B g o
RRUE SRR B AT B 2 B - R MR B
H R G E < B e B o Aa R
RPN & AR B R B PR T R Ik o A
AR [0 5107 40 T AR 0 Bl R A AR R A M 2 Bk
K o

Hh B 2 KB 2 ) 2 A B B A BB AR AR A
B2 E o Wt E R R AR o [ A R
JH % R H AR B 7R 3 4B 2 8% [l 1B AR AR A T 1
TR sk > LIARAR M E S - Bt B IRAR
R > ASE B RUZEAE 98 E ko

ik 2 B | ol 3R PR A R 55 1 A > iR 5 ) 2 [ R
o F) ZE AR R A B U R o e L R A
Hjh 5B 2 #5 T {8 & 1E H National Insurance

Contributions °

TE A8 45 4 1 B 22 48 B 7R 49 631,000 % T (&
— =4 1 639,000 %5 70 ) A 2 4 ]S AS € w4 [
li] ML A A B A5 2 {3 -
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27. OPERATING LEASES

Minimum lease payments made under AR N AR A B 2E
operating leases in respect of premises Z KRBT A 2 el
during the year HH A &

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows:

27. MERLH
The Group
AR
2014 2013
ZR—WLE —F—=%
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T#x T
1,633 1,663

TR SR > ASSE LA BRI ) 36 2 S AT B 58
B AT ZRTE AR AR A 2 S IRA A9 FH 8 2 AR 3
AR F H EAEI

The Group
AHH

2014 2013
- a2 SR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#L TFi#oT
Within one year — R 613 1,555
In the second to fifth years inclusive EAERE R (H EMAEEREEN) 364 910
977 2,465

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of

three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28.

Underwriting commission to Etin Tech
in connection with the open offer in
January 2013

Service fee to City University of Hong
Kong (“City University”)

Notes:

BN 138 5
The Group
A 4 1
2014 2013
g —F A
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T#7 T T
MR F—=F— HZ A MBS
Etin Tech 3247 2 6 85 4
— 54
16 5 Y 3 T KB (Tl DK B2 ) S A
Z M5 14 22

(1) The underwriting commission is calculated at 2% of the aggregate (i)

offer price in respect of the number of shares underwritten by

the ultimate holding company, Etin Tech, under the underwriting

agreement.

(ii)  CityU Enterprises Limited (“CityU Enterprises”), a wholly owned (ii)

subsidiary of City University, held a 20% interest in Etin City

Limited (“Etin City”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

On 9 January 2014, CityU Enterprises disposed of its entire interest

in Etin City. The service fee to City University is charged at terms

mutually agreed by both parties.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management which are the Directors

during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the remuneration

committee having regard to the performance of individuals and

market trends.

K JU1 48
Al 12 A
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A3 84 4 DA i B4 B 7] Etin Tech HR 45 62 £
Th ek 8 2 B B 2 A AE 2% 51 -

WK A A RA T (TR > i K2
2 & &It /A 7 #5 4 Etin City Limited ([ Etin
Cityl) » &AAR Z EEMIR) 2 20% M4k o it
SR HIUA > WO A2 E R Etin
City 2 &R o A T3 K B2 2 s # 4ic
7 1ih 7 2 ML

B3 N P ]
TEAEAMAR (MH#FF) RENZMEMT

The Group
A4

2014 2013
A TR AR
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#x T
4,684 4,551
45 45
4,729 4,596

MYt E N & B R B SR B
IR R E -

TeleEye Holdings Limited B IR 7 B4 B ]

87



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Yo I

88

RESULTS
eS|

Revenue

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

Income tax credit/(expense)

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
B & LR

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

A

BRBLRT R, (R 1H)
PR B, ()

AEEFITE, (E51R)

oSN LA
Ao F AN
I $2E PR i

BEE
mMAR

ZN/NGIE T ZEUN
JEAL 2 R 45
FF fE PR i
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Year ended 30 June
BREANH=1THIL4EE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
CERCBE CF A R SRS SR NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T T T F#ET
50,616 45,693 37,425 39,159 37,513
2,074 1,319 (6,744) (5,365) (6,635)
(542) (140) 498 13 —
1,532 1,179 (6,246) (5,352) (6,635)
1,525 1,206 (6,182) (5,268) (6,548)
7 27) (64) (84) (87)
1,532 1,179 (6,246) (5,352) (6,635)
At 30 June
BAH=1+H

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
CERCBE CF A SR SR SR NE
HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
T T T T T F#ET
43,684 45,240 38,382 39,542 31,756
(5,288) (3,967) (4,539) (4,455) (2,435)
38,396 41,273 33,843 35,087 29,321
38,537 41,450 34,078 35,396 29,760
(141) (177) (235) (309) (439)
38,396 41,273 33,843 35,087 29,321
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